
1

Kingsburg City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2016

Invocation was given by Pastor Pete Querin of New Life Church of God, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance led by Mayor Bruce Blayney.   

6:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order: Mayor Blayney called the Regular Meeting of the Kingsburg City Council to order at 
6:04pm.

Council Members present: Ben Creighton, Staci Smith, Michelle Roman and Mayor Bruce Blayney.

City Staff present: City Manager Alex Henderson, City Attorney Mike Noland, Fire Chief Tim Ray, 
Planning Consultant Holly Owen, and City Clerk Abigail Palsgaard.

Public Comments: None.

Approve Agenda: A motion was made by Council Member Creighton, seconded by Council Member 
Dix, to approve the agenda as published. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

Consent Calendar: A motion was made by Council Member Smith, seconded by Council Member Dix,
to approve the amended Consent Calendar with Item No. 6 being pulled as requested by Council 
Member Roman. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

1. Approval of City Council Minutes – Approve the minutes from the joint 
meeting of the Kingsburg City Council, the Board of Directors of the City of 
Kingsburg Public Financing Authority and the Board of Directors of the 
Kingsburg Redevelopment Successor Agency held on June 15, 2016 as prepared 
by City Clerk Abigail Palsgaard.

2. Check Register– Ratify/approve payment of bills listed on the check register for 
the period June 10, 2016 through June 30, 2016 as prepared by Accounts Payable 
Clerk Grace Reyna. 

3. San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Grant Application 
Resolution– Adopt Resolution 2016-038 allowing the City of Kingsburg and the City
Manager to apply for grant funds to purchase a new Alternative Fuel Vehicle.
Resolution prepared by City Clerk Abigail Palsgaard.

4. Police Vehicle Surplus Resolution – Adopt Resolution No. 2016-039 approving the 
surplus of vehicles that are no longer in use and to dispose of them as deemed 
appropriate.  Resolution prepared by City Clerk Abigail Palsgaard. 

5. Community Development Block Grant Agreement – Authorize Mayor Blayney to 
enter into contract with the County of Fresno for the distribution of funds for the 



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2016

2

Community Development Block Grant. Staff Report prepared by City Engineer Dave 
Peters.

6. Pulled

7. Local Transportation Purpose Certification and Claims – Adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-041 approving submittal of Local Transportation Purposes Certification 
and Claims for FY 2016/17 Measure C Extension Local Transportation through 
Project and Program Funds.  Resolution prepared by Finance Director Maggie 
Moreno. 

8. 2016/17 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claim – Approve submittal 
of the Transportation Funding Claim for Fiscal Year 2016/17 as prepared by 
Finance Director Maggie Moreno.  

b. Pulled Consent Calendar Items:

Item No. 6 - Appointment to the Community Services Commission – Affirm Mayor Blayney’s 
appointment of Joy Bratton to the Kingsburg Community Services Commission for the remainder of a four 
year term to expire in November 2016. Application is included.  

Council Member Roman said she wanted to pull this item to recognize and thank Tamra Norris for her 
service and commitment to the Community Services Commission.

A motion was made by Council Member Roman, seconded by Council Member Smith, to approve 
Consent Calendar Item 6. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

REGULAR CALENDAR

Reserve Fire Fighter John Saubert Retirement Recognition
Fire Chief Tim Ray presented John Saubert with a retirement badge, a plaque and a pin for his 30 years 
of service. Mayor Blayney pinned John Saubert’s badge and said he was honored to do so. Mr. Saubert 
said he was thankful for the experience. 

2016 American Planning Association California Central Section Award Presentation
Rob Terry, Principal Regional Planner for the Fresno Council of Governments, presented the awards and
spoke about the positive impact of Marion Villas. He said there has been stories in the media about the 
project and he has been contacted about it State wide. He said the project is a thoughtful effort of low 
income housing, mix use, and within walking distance of the downtown.

Holly Owen said she knows good planning when she sees it and that is what Marion Villas is. She said 
Kingsburg has progressive planning at its roots. She appreciates the opportunity to congratulate the 
Council and let them know how proud they should be.

Commission Funds Expenditure Requests for Skate Park Items and Benches for the Dog Park



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2016

3

Community Services and Senior Citizens Coordinator Ashlee Winslow-Schmal spoke about the purchases 
made last year and that the Community Services Commission would like to use remaining funds for 
purchasing benches for the dog park and pop up skate park equipment like what was used at the Swedish 
Festival.

The Council discussed how many events the equipment would be used at, which would be festivals 
throughout the year. Council Member Roman said she has had interest from the school district and the 
possibilities of other groups using the equipment.  Council Member Dix asked if we know where the kids 
who participated at the Swedish Festival came from. Council Member Creighton asked if we have someone 
knowledgeable to set it up. Council Member Roman said it is already built. We would just have to set it up. 
Council Member Creighton asked if we would call on public works to set it up. Council Member Roman 
said we have Commissioners who have trucks to pick it up. Council Member Creighton asked if the 
Commission has talked about a time frame to get a potential skate park and what the cost would be.

Council Member Roman said there is a potential place for a permanent skate park and she believes this 
equipment will be used in the permanent skate park. Mayor Blayney said I hear the concern about who is 
going to set it up and will they be there while it is going to be used. He said Ms. Winslow-Schmal already 
spends a lot of time on Saturdays doing City events. He said he doesn’t want it to fall back on her, or reflect 
negatively on City Staff. Council Member Creighton asked if you saying that you would have enough 
volunteers. Council Member Roman said yes, the Commission agreed to volunteer for the events. They do 
not want it out every Saturday, they want to keep it exciting.

Council Member Dix said he was hoping to see information from the pop-up skate park as to what is the 
interest from the community. He asked if buying the pop-up equipment is delaying us from getting an actual 
park.  Mayor Blayney said in the past it was hard to get adult volunteers for a skate park so if the 
Commission Members are committed to being the responsible adults, then that is good.

Council Member Dix asked what the ultimate cost is to have a permanent skate park. He said he wants to see
what the final number is and how we get there. He said he is looking at the long term. Council Member 
Roman said about 3 years ago there were 2,000 signatures of support for a skate park. She said the pop-up 
skate park equipment can be moved to different spots throughout town.  Council Member Dix asked how 
long the volunteers agreeing to do it will be on the Commission. He said he initially voted yes to have the 
kick off pop-up skate park for fundraising and getting data about the level of interest from the community.

Ms. Winslow-Schmal said she wanted to make sure we have money to keep maintaining the skate park 
pieces down the road.  Council Member Roman said we talked about $25,000 in matching funds. Part of the 
money can be used for maintenance and repair. Council Member Dix asked for an explanation for the 
matching funds. He said for me, I would rather see a push toward a permanent skate park if that is the desire 
of the community. Her concern is that the skate park is being pushed out leaving nothing for our youth. She 
said at the Swedish Festival it was the first time some of these kids felt connected to the community.

City Council discussed time frames and upcoming festivals. They discussed what happens to the money at 
the end of the fiscal year and if the money could be rolled over to the new fiscal year. City Manager Alex 
Henderson said the City doesn’t budget for money to be “rolled over” but with approval from the Finance 
Committee the budget can be amended. 



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2016

4

Mayor Blayney said concerns being expressed are; maintenance, staffing requirements, how often it will be 
utilized, and the major concern is what our future for this program. He said we can postpone this to get more
answers.

A motion was made by Council Member Creighton, seconded by Council Member Roman, to approve 
the purchase of the dog park benches. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

A motion was made by Council Member Dix, seconded by Council Member Smith to table the Pop-up skate
park equipment purchase to the August 3rd Council Meeting provided that the Community Services 
Commission answers Council’s concerns. 

City Manager Alex Henderson said some of the concerns voiced are; liability issues, maintenance, storage, 
how it moves towards an ultimate goal and what the ultimate price is. If we have land donated the overall 
price could be less expensive. He said the ballpark cost is between $250,000-$500,000. Council Member 
Roman said the price is dependent on the size and type. She said the Commission doesn’t want the 
swimming pool type. They prefer a kind we can move around, a modular skate park. Council Member Dix 
asked for a breakdown for the funds.

The motion carried to table this item to the August 3rd City Council meeting by a unanimous voice vote.

Extraterritorial Water Service Agreements
Planning Consultant Holly Owen discussed the request of three residential properties in the sphere of 
influence requesting City water. She said they are coming from failure or imminent failure of domestic 
wells. The process is Public Works and City Engineer go out to the project to see if it is viable. If it is 
and if it is approved by City Council it will go to LAFCo for approval. Through this process the City 
was able to update our process and our forms. Ms. Owen said attached are resolutions, a map and the 
agreements with the tables of fees.

Council discussed the compensation the City will receive and that there is a possibility of other 
imminent well failures on neighboring properties. Mayor Blayney said withholding water is a bad thing 
as long as people are willing to pay their share. 

A motion was made by Council Member Dix, seconded by Council Member Smith, to adopt Resolution 
2016-041 approving the Extraterritorial Water Service Agreement for 863 6th Avenue, Kingsburg, 
California. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

A motion was made by Council Member Dix, seconded by Council Member Smith, to adopt Resolution 
2016-042 approving the Extraterritorial Water Service Agreement for 334 Kern Street, Kingsburg, 
California. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

A motion was made by Council Member Dix, seconded by Council Member Smith, to adopt Resolution 
2016-043 approving the Extraterritorial Water Service Agreement for 39710 Road 16, Kingsburg, 
California. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2016

5

Building Permit and Activity Update
City Manager Henderson said there has been an increase in activity with single family residential, solar 
permits and electrical permits. He said all fees may not have been collected. Some may be deferred and 
are not necessarily paid when they apply for a permit. You can see the fee increase from fiscal year 2015
and fiscal year 2016. 

Council Member Dix asked what the “miscellaneous” section is for. Mr. Henderson said we have a new 
software program so we now are able to break out fees for better reporting. Council Member Dix asked 
about the 23 new commercial permits. Mr. Henderson said we have changed our reporting, so in the 
future the reported numbers will be more comprehensive. Council discussed with the City Manager the 
project tracker and upcoming projects. Mayor Blayney said he is concerned if the City has the staffing to
keep up with the upcoming projects. City Manager Henderson said we have added hours to Holly Owen 
and there is potential for more personnel. Council discussed InterWest, which is a company that reviews 
plans. Mr. Henderson said they are certified company who is qualified to stamp it and then Mike Koch, 
the City’s Building Inspector, checks it.

Council Reports and Staff Communications 

Community Services Commission
Council Member Roman referred to the previous discussion about the skate park equipment and the dog 
park benches. 

Public Safety Committee
Council Member Creighton said they meet next week.

Chamber of Commerce
Council Member Smith said they haven’t met. Mayor Blayney said he has heard great feedback from the
Fourth of July Firework celebration.

Economic Development
Council Member Roman spoke about the project tracker presented earlier in the meeting.

Finance Committee
Mayor Blayney said they have not met.

Planning Commission
Mayor Blayney said they have not met.

City Manager’s Report
City Manager Henderson said work has begun on California Street, Public Works will be adding stop 
signs at 16th and Tulare as you travel on 16th. He said the Traffic Safety Committee sent traffic info to 
the County for the intersection of Bethel and Conejo. Right now it is a two way stop and the Traffic 
Safety Committee is recommending to the Board of Supervisors it becomes a four-way stop. Mr. 
Henderson said the County is looking for federal funding for a stop light or a roundabout.



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2016

6

Council Member Creighton asked about a joint meeting with the Planning Commission. It was 
confirmed it will be Wednesday July, 27th at 6pm.

Other Business as May Properly Come Before the City Council
None.

Adjourn Regular Kingsburg City Council Meeting
Kingsburg City Council Regular Meeting was adjourned at 7:30pm.

Submitted by:

___________________________________________

Abigail Palsgaard, City Clerk


